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One-on-One Technical Assistance may be scheduled by contacting the staff listed in the 
front of this notice.  

Application Review and Rating Process 

This is a competitive application process for limited funding; therefore, applications that 
meet all criteria are not guaranteed an award of funds and successful applications may 
be funded for less than the amount requested 

Applications not meeting the requirements will be disqualified from consideration for 
funding and will not move any further through the process.  
Written notice will be sent to the disqualified Applicant. 

Applicants will need to demonstrate that they are able to spend down funds in a timely manner 
and that they have the capacity to complete the project. 

All applications will go through the following review and rating process. 

1. Initial Eligibility Screening
a. Application is complete.
b. Applicant meets eligibility requirements as of the application due date.
c. Project or activity is an eligible use of funds.

2. Staff Technical Review
a. Organizational Financial Review – RFP’s will be reviewed City will review for

Agency financial soundness. 
b. Organizational Capacity – Staff will review the capacity of the agency to manage

grants based on previous grant performance, board makeup, organizational
structure (including staffing), organizational data, etc.

c. Project Priority Review – Staff will review project goals and population served for
alignment with the Funding Priorities.

3. Project Review Committee (PRC) - The committee will make funding decisions using the
following process:

a. Review and evaluate each application using review and scoring guides.
b. Conduct interviews with each applicant; review responses using review and

scoring guides.
• Non-capital interviews (City-Wide Economic Development) will be 20 minutes

in length which includes 10 minute agency presentation and 10 minute
question/answer.
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• Capital interview will be 35 minutes in length which includes 15 minute
agency presentation and 20 minute question/answer.

• Interview length for agencies with multiple submissions of the same type
(non-capital, for example), may be shortened.

c. Assign a priority ranking and recommended funding level to all projects.
d. Staff matches ranking with available and appropriate funding sources.
e. PRC finalizes recommendations and sends to the Bremerton City Council.

4. Bremerton City Council – Public hearings to consider the Project Review Committee
recommendations will be held before the Bremerton City Council.  Council will make the
final funding approval.

5. Approved funding recommendations which include Federal funds are send to HUD for
approval in the annual Action Plan. Projects awarded funds must be included in the 2021
(Year 1) Action Plan to the 2021-2025 Consolidated Plan and submitted to HUD for
approval. The Action Plan cannot be finalized until the City of Bremerton receives federal
award amounts from HUD.

6. Final Awards-Funding recommendations were made based on estimated funds. Once the
actual amounts are known, project awards will be adjusted based on the contingency set
by the PRC and approved by the Bremerton City Council.

Project Review Committee (PRC) 

The Project Review Committee reviews and recommends funding for the CDBG Grant 
Application. PRC members read applications, review agency and financial capacity analyses, 
conduct applicant interviews, score, rank and develop funding recommendations. 
Recommendations are then presented to the Bremerton City Council, which make final funding 
decisions.  

PRC volunteers are selected based on their knowledge of the community’s needs and willingness 
to donate their time to PRC activies. PRC members must demonstrate the specific skills, 
qualifications and background needed to evaluate applications and recommend funding, such 
as: 

Affordable housing Grant writing or grant management 
 Architecture and planning Homeless programs 

Compliance monitoring Housing development 
Practical experience with HUD Mortgage lending 
Construction project management Non-profit community service provider 

 Economic development Project management experience 
Finance and accounting Real estate 

2022 Project Review Committee Makeup 
There is one project review committee for all CDBG applications. The committee is comprised of 
6 members: Three members are City of Bremerton staff volunteers (Director-Department of 
Community Development, Project Assistant-Department of Community Development, Assistant 
Finance Director-Finance Department), and two members are volunteers from the community, 
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one is a Planning Commissioner (Commissioner Wofford) and one is a City Council 
representative (Councilman Michael Goodnow). Additionally the City Auditor will participate in 
the initial organizational capacity review. The committee members are assigned to review and 
rate each of the grant applications submitted and all PRC members take part in the Applicant 
interviews.  

PRC positions are filled by appointment. The Mayor of the City of Bremerton appoints two 
members to the PRC committee. 

HUD Income Limits 

Median Family Income (MFI) is determined periodically by the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) on the basis of state and local earnings data and is published for cities and 
counties.   

The Median Family Income for the Bremerton-Silverdale MSA effective April 2019 is $91,400 for 
a four-person household. 

HUD updates income limits annually each spring. The most up-to-date income limits will apply to 
all CDBG and HOME funded projects. Contact your Block Grant Adminstrator for the most 
current Income Limits. 

         

*MFI = Median Family Income is determined periodically by the Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) on the basis of state and local earnings data and is published for 
cities
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and counties.  These figures represent percentages of MFI for Bremerton – 
Silverdale Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) published by HUD April, 2021. 

If Your Agency is Awarded Funds 

If your project/program is awarded funding, you will need to understand and follow the 
regulatory requirements associated with each of the funding sources.  

Please refer to the following documents for guidance: 
• Bremerton CDBG/HOME Policy Plan
http://www.ci.bremerton.wa.us/198/Federal-Grants---CDBG
• Bremerton CDBG/HOME Guidebook
http://www.ci.bremerton.wa.us/213/Subrecipient-CDBG-HOME-Guidebook

Things you should know: 
1. CDBG funds are Federal funds.  Use of Federal funds may affect the way your agency does 

business.
• If you are applying for Federal funds for the first time, you are required to meet 

with Block Grant staff to discuss Federal regulations.
• In addition to the rules and requirements of CDBG, there are several additional 

broad Federal rules that must be followed including rules surrounding non-
discrimination and equal access, employment, contracting and procurement, 
environmental requirements, record keeping and financial controls.

2. Contracting
• Your agency will be required to enter into a contract with the jurisdiction 

providing the funding, the City of Bremerton.
• The City of Bremerton manages their CDBG and HOME contracts separately. 

However, for both jurisdictions, the following applies:
o Capital contracts must receive a notice to proceed before costs can be 

incurred.
o Contracts for federal funds operate on a reimbursement basis.

• The program year begins January 1, 2022.
o NOTE:  If you are a recipient of federal funds you may not receive a 

contract until mid-year,  based on when the federal budget is approved and 
when the City receives a contract from HUD. Depending on your project, 
your contract term may coincide with the program year start date.

3. Reporting Requirements
• Quarterly Reports: It is your responsibility to submit quarterly performance and 

demographics reports, beginning January 1, 2022. Reports are to be submitted to 
each funding agency you are under contract with.

http://www.ci.bremerton.wa.us/198/Federal-Grants---CDBG
http://www.ci.bremerton.wa.us/213/Subrecipient-CDBG-HOME-Guidebook
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Appendix A 

Part 1-Eligibility and Risk Assessment Tool 
(used by City of Bremerton Staff, including internal auditor for Part 1: 

Agency Information) 

Part 2-Application Evaluation Criteria 
(used by City of Bremerton Staff and Project Review Committee for scoring 

Part 2: Project Information) 
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Applicant Name: ___________________ 

Proposed Project (s): ___________________________ 

Activity Description(s) & Proposed Use of Funds: ___________________________ 

Project service area:  
 City-wide
 CDBG Target-Area (NRSA)

Yes No N/A 
Applicant is Eligible    

Notes and Areas of Concern: 

Reviewed By: ___________________________________ Date: _________________ 

2022 CDBG 
Part 1 – Eligibility & Risk Assessment 
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Part 1- Eligiblity & Risk Assessment 

A. Applicant Eligibility

Yes No N/A 
1. Is the proposed project type(s) eligible? (i.e. does it

meet one of the targeted activities in the RFP)
   

2. Is the proposed project eligible for the funding source?
(CDBG) (i.e. does it meet a national objective and is it
an eligible activity?)

   

3. Is the applicant an eligible applicant as described in
the funding regulations?

   

4. Is applicant eligible to receive funds (i.e., currently not
disbarred or suspended from receiving federal funds)?
https://www.sam.gov/

   

5. Is the applicant in good standing with current City
contracts? Has the applicant ever been difficult to work
with (i.e. unresponsive, incommunicative etc.)

   

6. Does the organization have an independent annual
audit?

   

7. Is the proposed project a priority identified in the City
of Bremerton Consolidated Plan 2021-2025?

   

8. If a first-time applicant, did they receive the
mandatory technical assistance?

   

Applicant passed the Eligibility Review: 
 Yes
 No

B. Organizational Capacity & Management

Yes No N/A 
1. Is the organizational structure of the applicant

organization clearly defined? (Agency History,
Org. Chart & Parent Org. Info.)

   

2. Has the organization had changes to key staff or
positions in the past 12 months? (Narrative
question)

   

3. Does the board reflect a diverse representation of
the community including minority & consumer
participation, professionals from the community at
large, persons with low income, and consumer
advocates? (Board Member Form, Staff & Board
Profile Question)

   

4. Does board membership provide sufficient size
and structure for community participation (i.e.
board vacancies, size and term length)? (Board
Member Form)

  

https://www.sam.gov/
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5. Is the board actively involved in the leadership of
the organization and providing adequate financial
oversight, involvement in fundraising and
strategic planning? (Board involvement question,
board minutes & bylaws)

   

Concerns regarding agency organizational capacity: 

C. Financial Stability

Yes No N/A 
1. Does the organization demonstrate financial capacity

overall and capacity to undertake the proposed
program/project? (Agency Budget, Income
Statement/Profit & Loss)

   

2. Does the organization have reserve funds? (Balance
Sheet, Cash Flow Statement)

   

3. Does the organization have adequate internal financial
oversight? (narrative question)

   

4. Does the organization have experience managing
government grant funds? (narrative question)

   

5. Does the organization receive an audit, financial review,
or compilation? (Audit question, including audit type
and audit findings)

   

6. Is the organization involved in any litigation, have IRS
problems or unresolved audit findings?

   

7. Did the organization file an IRS 990 tax return?    
8. Does the organization have policies and procedures

regarding Fiscal Control, Procurement/Purchasing and
Non-Discrimination? If yes, do we have a copy of the
most recent? If no, review and evaluate uploaded
documents.
a. Does the Fiscal Control Policy & Procedures

adequately describe the fiscal management system
including cash controls, expenditure authorization
process, separation of duties, banking, account
reconciliation, budgetary controls, financial
reporting and board oversight. Are policies Board
approved?

b. Does organization have a Purchasing/Procurement
Policy & Procedures that address standards used for
purchasing goods and services, and competitive
process used to obtain best quality and price? Are
policies Board approved?

c. Does the agency have a policy of non-discrimination
based on all State and Federal protected classes for
staff, volunteers, clients and participants?

   

9. (For Federal Funds) Is the organization familiar with
procedures for the determination and allowance of
costs in connection with federal grants and contracts in
accordance with 2 CFR Part 200?

  
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Concerns regarding financial stability: 

D. History of Performance

Yes No N/A 
1. Has the agency received funds in prior year(s)?    
2. Have prior projects been complieted on schedule and

within original budget?
   

3. Has the agency had problems managing funds in
prior years?

   

4. Has the agency spent federal/local funds timely?    
5. Has the agency spent down 90% of the total grant

contract by the end of the term?
   

6. Does the agency have outstanding monitoring
issues?

   

7. Does the Agency report timely and accurately for
previous contracts?

   

8. Is the agency responsive; responding to staff
requests in a timely way?

   

Concerns regarding history of performance with grant funds:  

A reminder-this checklist is not exhaustive. The City reserves the right to add additional criteria.  
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